ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON COW TTEE
February 28, 2002
1:41 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or John Cowdery, Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senat or Robi n Tayl or

Senator Kim Elton

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Gary W/ ken
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 320

"An Act relating to certain notor vehicle repairs and prohibiting

discrimnation in notor vehicle insurance rates based on credit

rating or credit scoring; and providing for an effective date.”
MOVED CSSS 320 (TRA) OQUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record.
W TNESS REGQ STER

Annette Ski bi nski

Staff to Chairman John Cowdery

State Capitol Rm 101

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SB 320.

M chael Harrol d, Northwest Regi onal Manager
Nat i onal Associ ati on of | ndependent Insurers
9611 Rai ner Ave. South

Seattle WA 98118

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Opposes SB 320

David McCarter

No address given

Fai r banks, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 320

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -1- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



Tara Drennon

No address given

Fai r banks, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 320

St eve Conn

Al aska Public Interest Research G oup
507 E. St.

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 320

Suzanne Kel | ey, Oaner

Al aska Tab & Bind Printing Conpany
510 West Fireweed Lane

Anchor age, AK 99507

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 320

Dee Hubbard

No address given

Sterling, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 320

Sarah McNair-Gove, Actuary P/C

Dept of Community & Econom c Devel opnent
Di vision of |nsurance

P. O Box 110805

Juneau, AK 99811-0805

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 320

El i zabet h Moceri, Regi onal Counsel
Al | state I nsurance Conpany

18911 N. Creek Par kway

Bot hel I, WA 98102

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Opposes SB 320

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-11, SIDE A

CHAI RVAN JOHN COADERY call ed the Senate Transportation Conmittee
neeting to order at 1:41 p.m Present were Senator Tayl or,
Senator Elton and Chairman Cowdery. Senator Ward arrived at 1:45
p. m

# SB 320

SB 320- MOTOR VEHI CLE | NSURANCE & REPAI RS

CHAI RVAN COWDERY said the committee would take testinobny on one

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 2- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



bill. The bill before the commttee was SB 320.

SENATOR TAYLOR noted there was a proposed committee substitute

(CS) in the packet. The CS cut the bill in half and addressed
the credit rating portion of the bill. He noved and asked
unani nous consent that the CS be considered the bill before the

commi ttee. The CS is |abeled Wrk Draft Ford/J dated 2/26/02
(Version J).

CHAI RVAN COWDERY, hearing no objection, stated the bill before
the commttee was CSSB 320 (TRA) “An  act prohi biting
discrimnation in insurance rates based on credit rating or
credit scoring; and providing for an effective date.”

M5S. ANNETTE SKIBINSKI, staff to Chairnman Cowdery, summrarized the
sponsor statenment for CSSB 320 (TRA).

This bill relates to insurers using credit scoring and
or rating in determning insurance policy rates and
prem uns. What does your credit score have to do with
how nmuch you pay for autonobile insurance? Just about
ever yt hi ng.

Currently Alaska allows credit scoring to be part of
i nsurance conpany rating plans in which underwiting
and rate setting is done. The Alaska Division of
I nsurance has a statutory nandate (AS 21.36.120) to
protect the Al aska consuner against discrimnation.
Every car and home insurance conpany in Al aska, except
one, uses credit scoring. Conpani es believe this
method is a way to predict risk in determning
potential insurance |osses. Credit has nothing to do
with risk. The practice of using this data
di scrim nates agai nst certain types of consuners.

First of all, credit scores and credit reports are nmany
tinmes inaccurate and contain errors in the informtion.
They are also very difficult and cunbersone to correct.

There are currently about 25 states considering banning
the use of credit history in determning insurance

rates. Hawai i banned this insurance underwiting and
rate setting practice 15 years ago and their prem uns
still today remain sone of the lowest in the United
St at es.

The insurance industry wants to utilize this easy
nethod to raise rates. Because of epidemc credit
probl ens t hroughout our society, this is an easy way to
target consunmers and raise their premuns. Wy are we

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 3- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



puni shing the 40 year old woman with a clean driving
record who sinply gets divorced and it changes her
credit status? Wiy are we raising the premuns of a 70
year old man with a clean driving record whose nedica
bills affected his credit history? Your driving record
al one shoul d be the factor for rate setting.

The bottom line is comobn sense. We have nandatory
insurance laws in this state. And by wusing credit
scores we are nmaking it even nore difficult and
expensive for the Al askan consumer to obtain insurance.
Sinmply, SB 320 prohibits insurance conpanies in Al aska
fromusing credit scores in either underwiting or rate
setting practices.

CHAI RVAN COWNDERY, sponsor of SB 320, said that is the sponsor
statenent. He invited Mchael Harrold to testify.

MR MCHAEL HARROLD, Northwest Regional Manager, Nationa
Association of Independent Insurers, explained they are a
property and casualty insurance rate association that represents
over 690 nenber conpani es. He shared a handout wth commttee
menbers.

MR. HARRCLD said studies confirm the correlation between credit
information and |oss ratios. He wanted to walk the committee
through the hand out to graphically illustrate the correlation
t hat exi sts.

The credit information enables insurers to do a nunber of things
i ncl udi ng:

 Wite nore business, not |ess business.

* Renew nore policies and accept nore new busi ness.

« Mre aggressively and conpetently wite in urban markets.

e« Ofer the mpgjority of policyhol ders |ower insurance rates.

e Provide a nore fair and equitable pricing structure by
inter-matching rates with risk of |oss.

| nsurance use of credit information provides a nore
obj ective and unbi ased tool for underwiting and rating
i nsurance ri sk. For many years insurers were accused
of being very subjective and eyebal | i ng whoever wal ked
into their office and decidi ng whether or not they may
or may not have sonme type of characteristic whether
that person mght be their type of person etcetera -

sonething that <could be subjective. Wth credit
scoring the whole process has becone nuch nore
obj ecti ve.

Credit based insurance scores supplenment other sources

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -4- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



of underwiting and rating information that nmay be
subject to errors, underreporting or m srepresentation.
Driving records are notoriously inaccurate, sonetimnes
as high as up to 40% Records of accidents can al so be
terribly inaccurate. So credit scoring is another way
to cone in and supplenent and augnent that type of
information and cone up with a nore predictive tool.

| nsurance scores do not consider incone, address, race,
ethnicity, religion, gender, famlial status, handi cap,
nationality, age or marital status. So once again,
this is not something that’s factored into an insurance
score. No state insurance departnent, the departnents
have sanctioned an insurer on the grounds that credit
based insurance scores discrimnate against |ow incone
or mnority consuners. In fact we find that consuners
with incones below $30,000 and between $30,000 and
$50, 000 have insurance scores equivalent to consuners
with inconmes greater than $50,000. That what we really
find is that a credit based i nsurance score has not hi ng
to do with how rich you are, it has nothing to do with
where you live, has nothing to do with what your race

may be. It sinply has to do with how well you nanaged
what you do have. And for that reason you can have -
people are on - that are low inconme individuals can

manage their noney a |lot better than sonebody that’s
maki ng over a $100, 000 that has the opportunity to have
a lot nore credit cards and is out buying a lot nore
things. It really conmes down to personal responsibility
and that personal responsibility translates into the
way that people drive, how well they maintain their
homes and consequently the types of |osses that - that
sonebody may have being an insured of a particular

conpany.

We sinply would encourage | egislators and regulators to
be very wary of a negative inpact that inposing
restrictions on insurers use of credit information wll
have on the availability and the affordability of
i nsur ance.

MR HARROLD said one of NAIC s nenber conpanies did sone
predictions of the outconme if this bill is passed and the
use of credit information i s banned:
e 51%of their policyholders would receive rate increases
and those rate increases would average about $180 a
year.

e 40% of their policyholder’s rates would stay about the
same because the use of credit information does not
i npact their rates.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 5- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



e 9% of their policyholders are the holders nost |ikely
to suffer losses and would get discounts in their
prem um

MR. HARRCLD said they thought that was unfair. Hopeful |y
what a consunmer wants is to pay an insurance premiumthat is
commensurate with the risk they represent and the |oss they
are going to have.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked himto repeat those nunbers.
MR. HARROLD said 51% woul d go up by $180 on average.

SENATOR TAYLOR said 40% stays the sane. He said 9% of their
policyholders, if they use credit rating, would pay whatever 51
times $180 divided by 9 woul d equal

MR. HARRCLD said he assuned that mght be the way that it would
be.

SENATOR TAYLOR replied:

| don’t know what round nunbers you re working off of
but if we only took the percentages under a credit
rating policy, 9% of your policies that you have out
there are paying an increase in their policy that would
be equal to what 100 - excuse ne, what 51% of that
conpany’s policyholders would pay at the rate of $180.
That nust a huge nunber for the 9% Can you tell me
what - what anmount the 9% are currently being
subsi di zed t oday.

MR. HARROLD did not have that information. He said it isn't that
the 9% are being subsidized. Currently 9% pay what is considered
to be an appropriate prem um

He expl ained that this conmpany currently has five tiers in which
it slots policyholders. If credit scoring is renoved from the
equation they would have to truncate that to three tiers and that
is how they estimated the inpact on rates. He said he could get
nore thorough information and a further breakdown w th actual
dol | ar anounts.

SENATOR TAYLOR said since M. Harrold had broken it down to how
much the increase would be on the 51% he could only assunme the 9%
was paying that full anmount presently in a credit rated policy.
MR. HARRCOLD said that was a fair assunption.

SENATOR TAYLOR said if the increase would be $180 for 51% t hen

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 6- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



the average person receiving a bad credit rating is probably
payi ng $900 nore to get insurance through the credit rated policy
than the ot her people.

MR. HARROLD t hought Senator Taylor’s math was correct. He said
insurers use a nunber of factors. They do not just use credit
scoring but that certainly is one of the factors that would be in
t hat equati on. He did not think a $900 difference between a
better rate and a worse rate was uncommon.

SENATOR WARD asked if all states use credit for the basis of
setting rates.

MR HARROLD said all other states allow the use of credit
ratings. He thought California, through Proposition 103, doesn’'t
allowits use for autonobile insurance.

Under the Fair Credit Reporting Act all insurers are allowed to
do a credit check and pre-screen people for insurance. An
insurer is allowed to pre-screen and to get a |ist of people who
have a credit score over a certain nunber and they can extend an
offer to those people. A credit card conpany mght do that and
then make an offer of a particular rate through the nail.

SENATOR WARD asked if all states and all insurance people, except
the autonobile insurance in California, are allowed to use credit
ratings and are doi ng so.

MR. HARROLD said it is allowed and they are doing it.

SENATOR ELTON noted M. Harrold had said credit scoring is better
than the eyeballing that used to happen when a custoner wal ked in
the office. He said M. Harrold could not possibly have neant the
four insurance providers in Al aska, previous to the use of credit
scoring, made a determ nation on who can purchase insurance based
on eyebal | i ng.

MR. HARROLD said it would not be just based on eyeballing.
Looki ng back over the history of the criticisns of the insurance
industry there was a tinme when people would nmake those types of
subj ective argunents. In Washington State an agent told him a
fell ow agent asked people how often they washed their car.

SENATOR ELTON asked if M. Harrold was just making an anecdot al
conparison and not saying that was how the insurance industry
oper at ed.

MR. HARRCOLD said there woul d not be any basis in |osses or ratios
t here.

SENATOR ELTON was glad M. Harrold cl eared that up.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -7- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



SENATOR WARD asked how the non-credit scoring in California for
aut onobi | es was wor ki ng.

MR. HARROLD said fromhis understanding it is part of Proposition
103 so they are not allowed to use it on the rating. California
has a very conplicated systemand is a bit of a ness.

SENATOR WARD asked if the rates went down in California.
MR. HARROLD di d not know.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY said credit scoring had been banned in Hawaii .
He referred to information in the packet that shows that Hawaii’s
rates had gone down over the previous three years. He asked if
t hat was correct.

MR. HARROLD did not know Hawaii’s year-by-year statistics. From
his understanding Hawaii banned the use of credit scoring in
ratings al nost a decade ago. More recently, the Comm ssioner of
Insurance in Hawaii told conpanies they were not able to use
credit scoring for underwiting either. He understood that
policy was in the courts at this tine.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY said credit scoring proved to be a big problem
for people getting insurance and for the cost of insurance in
Hawai i .

MR. HARROLD said Hawaii was a “take all coners” state. | nsurers
are required to wite.

CHAI RMAN CONDERY asked himto restate that.

MR. HARROLD explained that “take all conmers” neans essentially
you have to wite insurance for sonebody if they come through the
door.

CHAI RMAN CONDERY asked about the rates.

MR. HARROLD said hearing that Hawaii had some of the | owest rates
in the country in the sponsor statenment surprised him He wanted
to look at a NAIC receipt to verify that.

CHAI RVAN COANDERY said there was an article in the packet fromthe
Wal| Street Journal, dated February 20", 2002. He said Indiana
and Washi ngton are Ilkely to pass Ieglslatlon to restrict the use
of credit history in determning insurance rates, according to
insurance officials. These states are anong 25 that are
considering or expected to consider bills to ban or limt the
controversial issue.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 8- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



MR. HARROLD said there are probably 25 states |ooking at the
issue. It has certainly exploded on the scene as far as being
| ooked at. He understood |Indiana m ght not have legislation this
year because there are different bills in the House and Senate
and the respective sponsors are in a bit of a spat. Washington
State is very close to enacting |egislation.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY asked if, except for Washington State, he was
saying the other 25 states considering this legislation are not
going to do it.

MR. HARROLD said no, that Chairman Cowdery had singled out
Washi ngton and | ndi ana. He said this is a process that is
underway in states all across the country.

CHAl RMAN CONDERY asked him to |leave all of his handouts for the
record.

MR. HARROLD asked the commttee to turn to his handout, which
illustrates why insurers use this tool. Exhibit A |ooks at
aut onpbi |l e i nsurance | oss rati os.

Rel ationship of Loss Ratio to Number of Credit Lines
60+ Days Delinquent in Last 24 Months

120.00%-

100.00%-

80.00%

o
40.00%4"
20.00%+"

0.00%-
zero one two or more total

Nunmber of Trade Lines 60+ Days
Del i nquent in Last 24 Months

MR. HARROLD explained trade lines in this instance are paynents
such as credit cards. A dollar paid for insurance would represent
100% of the loss ratio. The first colum would be the people who
have not had trade |lines delinquent for 60+ days and they average
a loss ratio of 75.4% |If a person has one trade |ine delinquent
then their loss ratio junps up to 103.2% A person with two or
nore has a loss ratio of 113.5%

There is a very direct correlation. The colum of people who

have a zero nunber of trade |ines delinquent or zero nunber of
collections or zero nunmber of adverse public records tend to be

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 9- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



about 86% to 96% of people. The overwhelm ng majority of people
have what woul d be considered good credit. They do not fall into
t hese categori es.

Rel ati onship of Loss Ratio to Number of Coll ections

120.00%
100.00%
80.00%
60.00%
40.00%
20.00%
0.00%-

ANANAN

zero one or more total

Nunber of Coll ections

Rel ati onship of Loss Ratio to Nunmber of Adverse
Publ i ¢ Records

100.00%
80.00%
60.00%

40.00%

NN NN\

20.00%

0.00%-+
zero one or more total

Number of Adverse Public Records
SENATOR TAYLOR asked what an adverse public record is.

MR. HARROLD said it could be a bankruptcy, foreclosure or
col |l ection.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if it included donestic violence.
MR. HARROLD said they would not | ook at that.

SENATOR WARD asked if child support was included.

MR. HARROLD did not think insurers | ook at child support.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -10- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



SENATOR TAYLOR said if they look at credit rating they nust have
been looking at <child support. Child support is one of the
bi ggest credit itenms. Al aska has a huge state collection agency
that does nothing but collect child support and the information
is turned over to credit reporting institutions. If child support
was not current he thought that would show up on a credit report.

SENATOR WARD said it does show up.

MR. HARROLD said there are four to five conpanies that have their
own nodels. The Fair, |saac Conpany and Choice Point are vendor
conpani es that have nodels other conpanies use. They have a
variety of nodels and the insurers choose one they would like to
use. He said child support may be considered an adverse public
record but they don't necessarily have to | ook at everything

They have taken the data and | ooked at the nunbers and figured
out what they think is going to be nost predictive of an
insurance loss. There is conpetition anong insurers and vendors
to figure out who can |look at the data the best. They conpete on
how they | ook at all the other factors.

SENATOR TAYLOR said adverse public record includes bankruptcies
and foreclosure on a car loan and that type of thing.

MR. HARROLD said he would skip Exhibit B but pointed out that for
honmeowner insurance the «credit base scores are even nore
predictive than for auto insurance, although both are very
predictive.

MR. HARROLD explained that Exhibit C conpares the loss ratio
relativity to credit score. A lowcredit score is negative and a
high credit score is nore positive. Losses are higher in the
| eft hand columm for individuals that have |ow credit scores and
as credit scores get gradual |y hi gher and financi al
responsibility is reflected, they have fewer and fewer | osses.
This is sonmething a non-statistician can |look at and see why
insurers are interested in the information and why they found it
to be very effective in predicting | oss.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -11- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



Per sonal Auto | nsurance

OLoss Ratio Relativity

low high

Score Range

CHAl RMAN CONDERY asked if all insurance conpanies use this sane
net hod.

MR. HARROLD said they | ook at different records according to what
they work best in. Allstate may ook at different factors than
Progressive. Fair, |saac Conpany designs nodels that a nunber of
insurers buy and use and they |l ook at different factors as well.
They all conpete to try to ook at the data in the nost efficient
manner .

CHAI RVAN CONDERY asked if they share this data with each other.

MR. HARROLD said no. They were very concerned about that data
bei ng public because they put a lot of tinme and effort into their
nodels. He said it is the same way with conpanies that offer
loans on credit cards or a loan for an autonobile. They have
their own nethods of |ooking at the nunbers in ways they think
are going to be nost predictive of who is going to be able to pay
t hem back.

SENATOR ELTON asked M. Harrold to correct himif he was wong.
He thought it was inmportant to point out that conpeting insurance
conpanies may not share information, but conpanies |ike Fair,
| saac sell the credit scoring informtion. They will sell the
information to other insurers, letting them know when sonebody’s
policy is about ready to expire so the other insurance conpanies
can start dunmping information in the mail and maki ng phone calls
to people’ s hones. They may not share the data and how the
formul a was reached but they certainly share the information that
is conpiled because of credit scoring.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -12- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



CHAI RVAN CONDERY sai d they had nore information and exanpl es they
woul d be sharing with the commttee.

SENATOR WARD asked if any of the people M. Harrold represented
use bad credit on credit cards as one of the criteri a.

MR. HARROLD sai d yes.

SENATOR WARD asked if insurance rates would go up for sonebody
with bad credit because of credit cards.

MR. HARRCLD said that could be one of the factors that would go
into a credit-scoring nodel. These are very sophisticated nodel s
so one thing is not going to send rates through the roof. Most
people are going to have good <characteristics and bad
characteristics. Mst people have a good <credit history.
Different types of activities vary in degree. Certainly sonmebody
that has a bankruptcy and has reached the maximnumlimt on all of
their credit cards would have a higher score.

SENATOR WARD said he knew of two families where the farther they
went into debt with credit cards the nore credit cards were sent
and they used them These people were not filing bankruptcy, they
were working their way through that. He asked if their insurance
rate woul d go up.

MR HARROLD said it would depend on what other factors a
particular insurer’s nodel is taking into account because they
don’t just look at credit cards. They |look at a w de spectrum of
credit related activities.

SENATOR WARD asked if they would have a higher rate because of
just credit cards.

MR. HARROLD said he could not tell him

SENATOR WARD asked if the nodel gave a higher car insurance rate
because of credit cards only. He said it was five or six credit
cards and they were in a lot of financial trouble.

MR. HARROLD said from his understandi ng based on delinquent trade
lines if they were in debt and had been delinquent on their
credit cards there was a good chance they would have a | ower
credit score and a higher potential to be a risk of loss. They
probably woul d have a hi gher insurance rate.

SENATOR WARD said they had a credit card and then started

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -13- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



acquiring other cards to pay off the first card.

MR, HARROLD said he was not trying to waffle or be anbiguous.
D fferent i nsurers have di fferent nodel s. These are
sophi sticated nodels with a nunmber of factors including non-
credit related factors.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY said M. Harrold informed him earlier of how
people feel stress because of debt on credit cards and this
stress was a factor considered by insurers. They do not
necessarily have to be delinquent to have this stress. Stress
can be caused when they have reached the maximum limt and are
only paying the interest.

He said soldiers are going off to war and have increasing stress
and expenses. The spouses are left at honme and are also feeling
increased stress. He asked if that affected their rates. He said
he failed to see where stress should affect insurance rates. He
thought the job the legislature was doing was extrenely
stressful. He asked M. Harrold to nake the connection between
stress and i nsurance rates.

MR. HARRCOLD said the answer has two parts.

One is that when we were tal king | ast week we were sort
of tal king about how, OK we see a correlation in these
nunbers but what’s the causation and so you begin to
tal k about that. And what we can tell is that first of
all what’s nost inportant to an insurer is that their
tool is predictive and that it works. That is the
bottom line. Wiether they can figure out the cause or
not is another issue. Wat | then said is that there
are a nunber of studies however that have been done in
various fields that |look at this type of issue. And the
two things that tend to conme up are that yes, people
could be underneath nore stress and that people that
are stressed are going to have a higher chance of - of
having a loss or they may be preoccupied with other
aspects of their life so naybe their not paying so much
attention to their driving, nmaintaining their car,
taking care of their home, things of that nature.

And the other factor was that a consideration of
causation is that these people may have nore of a risk
taking type of behavior. This may hel p us explain why
the person that sees a yellow light and accel erates
through it versus a person that sees a yellow |light and
stops. So it's the whole elenment of risk taking
behavi or can conme into that as well and just before.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -14- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



As far as the soldier, Senator, | would take note that
one of our nenber conpanies is USAA and they are
insurers for the arned services soldiers current, past
and present. And | would say that they probably have
one of the highest custoner |oyalty and opinions of how
they are treated by their insurance conpany in the

country of all insurers. And USAA is a conpany that is
using credit scoring. It is helping them nore
appropriately charge people a premium that IS

commensurate with the risk. So | don’t think that USAA
woul d be treating their policyholders in a manor that
woul d be considered prejudicial in that regard.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY said credit information is personal information
therefore in all the policies, even the USAA policy, sonmewhere in
the fine print the policyhol der gives the insurer the privilege
to check credit.

MR HARROLD sai d he was not sure.

CHAI RMAN COWDERY said they couldn’'t just go check a person’s
credit without sone consent.

MR. HARRCLD said sure they can. He did not think when Chairnman
Cowdery received credit card offers in the mail they had called
himup for his consent to check his credit rating. They had not
called M. Harrold up when he got credit card offers in the mil.

SENATOR TAYLOR said they were all rotating around the sane issue,
but they really hadn’t tal ked about the issue yet.

The issue is those of us lay people that aren't
involved in the insurance industry, we assune that
causation has sonething to do with rates - if you cause
accidents that your rates will be higher. If you don't
cause accidents your rates will be |lower. But there is
absolutely no correlation between causation and many
other factors. | don’t know of any relationship here
where causation can be established off of this. There
is a correlation. Now that’'s a term we wuse in
statistics. But statistics are fascinating things.

SENATOR TAYLOR said they take a mllion people in Amrerica and
find out everything they can about them They find weird
anomalies that just occur in statistics. The insurance industry
| ooks at everything. They have people called actuaries that study
denographics and statistics they can base things on. One of the
bi ggest things they use in denographics is age. A 16 year old
person could be the nost responsible 16 year old in the world but
they are still going to be rated very high and pay an exorbitant

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -15- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



prem um because statistically people that are young and
i nexperienced get in nore accidents and have nore problens than
soneone in an older age group. M. Harrold had testified there
were sonme areas they didn't use. Senator Taylor said that didn't
nean they didn't |ook at those areas as a conpany but they were
not using them

MR, HARROLD said it did nean they don’t | ook at those areas.
SENATOR TAYLOR said at one point in tine sone statistician did.

MR. HARROLD said sone of these factors are things that insurers
do ook at. Insurers do |ook at gender. They find males tend to
have nore accidents than femal es do.

CHAl RMAN CONDERY asked if that was per mle and whether nmales
drive nore mles than fennl es.

SENATOR TAYLOR said they don’t care about mles they are just
| ooki ng at gender.

MR. HARROLD said marital status is another factor. A 30 year old
married person is considered to have fewer accidents than a 30
year old that is single. They are not just considered to have
nore accidents the nunbers show that is the case.

SENATOR TAYLOR said there is a correl ation.

MR. HARRCLD expl ained when he pointed to these various factors
that they are sinply looking at the way finances are handl ed and
are not |ooking at those individual factors as far as putting
that into the credit score.

SENATOR TAYLOR said it is only one part of an overall package.
He asked what other characteristics they use besides age, gender
and marital status.

MR. HARROLD said they could use things |ike prior insurance
There are studies that show people who have not had insurance in
the past tend to have higher | osses.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if they used race.

MR. HARROLD sai d no.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if he was sure.

MR. HARRCOLD sai d yes.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked what if there is a correl ati on.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -16- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



MR. HARROLD said it still is not sonething that should be used.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked why. He said if age is okay and gender is
okay and they want to know about his marital status maybe his
race gets in nore wecks than M. Harrold s race does.

MR HARROLD said it was very possible there could be a
correlation there but as a society it is something they do not
| ook at.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked about religion and whether Catholics are
nore dangerous drivers that Mislins or nore dangerous than H ndus
or Baptists.

MR. HARROLD said it would be the same answer.
SENATOR TAYLOR asked why.

MR. HARROLD replied, “That’'s something that as a society we
deci ded we should not | ook at.”

SENATOR TAYLOR said that was the point they were trying to get
to. Society would be offended if they started doing racial
profiling.

MR. HARROLD said correct.

SENATOR TAYLOR said society would probably be really offended if
they were doing religious profiling or profiling based on
national origin or color. He said those would all be very
offensive. He said he did not know that insurers were not doing
that. He did not think any of themwere going to know if insurers
were doing it or not doing it until sonmeone put a proposal before
a legislature that said absolutely don't to this and have
auditors for the Insurance Conm ssion nmake sure they are not. He
said they all assunme that to be a public policy and no conpany
woul d do that.

MR. HARROLD said those are factors they are not allowed to | ook
at .

SENATOR TAYLOR asked even if there were a trenendous correl ation,
the only justification for looking at credit is correlation.

MR. HARROLD sai d correct.

SENATOR TAYLOR said there is no causation they could speak to
her e.

MR HARROLD said the insurers are interested in the fact that
nore accidents and nore clains are filed. He could watch M chael

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -17- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



Jordan sink a junp shot and could not explain it as a physici st
but a physicist probably could. What they are interested in is
the fact that M chael Jordan makes a junp shot. It is the sane
type of thing.

SENATOR TAYLOR said there is a correlation between the nunber of
times he shoots and the nunber of times it goes through the
basket .

SENATOR TAYLOR said there are areas where public policy did not
care if there is a correlation. He thought is was worth the
di scussion and debate to talk about whether or not soneone’s
credit should be used adversely against them for the purpose of
setting rates.

MR. HARRCLD understood that was at issue. The insurance industry
thinks it is well within bounds because the consunmer wants to pay
a premumthat is reflective of the loss they may have. Credit
information is wused in nmany other facets of daily lives.
Acquiring a |loan gives people opportunity but the bank is not
going to give themthe loan if they don’t have good credit.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked what insurers do in regard to significant
others in a sane sex relationship. He asked if they received
credit for marital status under insurance progranms or non-narital
status and paid a higher rate.

MR. HARRCLD sai d he had never been asked that question before and
was not sure.

SENATOR TAYLOR said nmaybe it is don't ask, don't tell. Insurers
i nqui re about marital status when he purchases insurance.

MR. HARRCLD said Vernont was the one state that passed such a | aw
and several other cities have had partnership laws that apply to
heal th insurance and other things. He did not know whether that
applies to auto insurance.

SENATOR TAYLOR said it mght be very interesting and they could
find a trenmendously high correlation. He asked if they found a
correlation |ike that whether they would be using it.

MR. HARROLD said it would be considered off limts.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if that had been considered yet.

MR. HARRCLD said it had not been considered yet and it was very
i nteresting.

SENATOR WARD said a person living beyond their nmeans who had
trouble with credit cards woul d be | ooked at as having bad credit

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 18- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



and maybe have a higher rate. He said the State of Alaska is
self insured and had been living off credit from their account
for ten years. An airline in Anchorage just went into Chapter 11.
They did not pay their bills and their rates did not go up. He
said the insurance conpany was treating the airline differently
than his cousin that ran the bill up.

MR HARROLD said that would be a commerci al account.

SENATOR WARD said the ability to pay is one criterion. Enron
still has a fleet of vehicles. Even though they may have had a
little downturn in their bottomline, their insurance rates would
not be suffering. He asked if that was correct.

MR. HARROLD said he was not sure that was the case. The ability
to pay is not sonething that is looked at. It isn’t one of the
factors. Wth commercial insurance the use of credit information
or financial information has been a staple for years. Only nore
recently it has begun to be |ooked at on the personal 1|ines
| evel .

SENATOR WARD said the airline conpany is privately owned and they
filed for protection. Their insurance rates have not gone up. He
asked if they should go up if they are equal to the person living
in Mountain View in Anchorage.

MR. HARROLD asked if he was saying if it is fair for one, it is
fair for the other.

SENATOR WARD said no, he was wondering what the insurance
i ndustry would do. He did not knowif it was fair or not. He did
not know if it was fair that people kept sending credit cards to
peopl e that were already in trouble. He said he always had a hard
time deciding between sonebody that is a business and commerci al
and sonebody that is non-commercial and a citizen because he felt
the citizen had nore rights. He asked if the commercial business
woul d be treated differently.

MR. HARROLD said it was a question he could put to people and ask
how that would be treated in a commercial context. He did not
know whet her in nost cases comrercial rates would go up.

SENATOR WARD sai d nobst commrercial businesses are corporations and
a corporation is considered an entity. They have the right to be
sued and sue, to incur debt and not to incur debt and they also
have the right to file bankruptcy just like an individual does.
He did not wunderstand why that entity wuld be treated
differently.

MR. HARROLD said the bottomline is a dollar and cents question
for both an individual and a corporation.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -19- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



SENATOR WARD asked if the ability to pay would be the factor.

MR. HARROLD said he was tal king about the potential for |oss not
a matter of how much noney they have. They are going to | ook at
that corporation in the context of are they going to have | osses.
They charge a premiumthat is appropriate for the | osses they may
have. It would be the same with an individual. It was a dollar
and cents question, not a matter of rich or poor but whether or
not they are going to have | osses.

SENATOR ELTON said they needed to nove along but he had a series
of questions and was going to phrase themin such a way that M.
Harrol d could answer themyes, no, or | don’t know.

SENATOR ELTON assuned with the data shown on the chart, credit
scoring reduces risk for the insurer therefore it should have
sone net affect on gross rates for consuners.

MR. HARROLD said not gross in the sense of overall amount. It is
hel pi ng i nsurers better apportion the prem uns.

SENATOR ELTON said Progressive is one of the mmjor carriers in
Al aska. Progressive began using credit scoring in 1998. Since
1998, in a series of rate requests to the Division of Insurance,
they have raised rates 18.8% He asked if it made sense that they
used a nore efficient way of determning risk and rates would go
up that nmuch in a period of four years.

MR. HARRCOLD answered yes it does. The fact that paynent rates go
up doesn’t nmean how accurately they are going to predict how they
go up - it is a separate issue.

SENATOR ELTON asked if he had testified on credit scoring in
| daho.

MR. HARROLD answered yes.

SENATOR ELTON asked if he renenbered who sponsored the
| egi sl ati on.

MR. HARROLD sai d John Goedde.

SENATOR ELTON asked what his occupati on was.

MR. HARRCLD said he was an insurance agent.

SENATOR ELTON asked if Senator Goedde was a Republican.
MR. HARRCOLD answered yes.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 20- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



SENATOR ELTON asked if he was there when Senator Goedde said he
had heard of honeowner insurance rates shooting up 300% and said
the biggest |osers are the elderly, the very young and nenbers of
mnority groups when credit scoring is used.

MR. HARROLD was not sure that was exactly what Senator Goedde
said on the day he was there. He said Senator Goedde could have
said it.

SENATOR ELTON asked if Republican Representative Bill Deal of
Nanpa, |daho was involved in the hearings when M. Harrold was
t here.

MR. HARROLD sai d Representative Deal was not there, he is on the
House si de.

SENATOR ELTON asked if it would surprise M. Harrold and did he
know hi s background.

MR. HARRCOLD sai d Representative Deal was an insurance agent.

SENATOR ELTON asked if it surprised M. Harrold to hear
Representative Deal say that wusing credit scores to judge
exi sting custoners is very inequitable and norally w ong.

MR. HARRCLD said, “I read the sanme quote. | think that was the
article in which the comment that | nade was taken out of context
as well.”

SENATOR ELTON asked if he thought it was taken out of context.
TAPE 02-11, SIDE B

MR. HARROLD said he could tell them that Representative Deal is
probably close to supporting |egislation that does not do nearly
what was on the table there.

SENATOR ELTON said there were very few Denocrats in the Idaho
Legislature so he was assuming that any legislator from |Idaho
that is quoted is going to be a Republican. He was struck by
this Republican Representative’'s statenment that it was very
i nequi table and norally w ong.

SENATOR ELTON thought M. Harrold could find it easy to prove
there is a correlation between credit scoring and risk. He asked
if his enployers had ever |ooked at correlations between credit
scoring and discrimnation. He was speaking specifically of the
study in Maryland they spoke about a couple of weeks previously.
He asked if M. Harrold had reviewed the Maryl and report.

MR. HARROLD said he had seen the Maryland report. It’s very

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -21- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



i nconpl ete because it does not have a columm on there that talks
about what the losses were. It says people in this area pay
hi gher insurance premuns than people in this other area but it
does not say it is because of the losses in this area.
Territorial rating is one of those conmponents where certain
territories are | ooked at as a group, just |like other factors.

SENATOR ELTON said he did not want to badger M. Harrold and
apol ogized. He said that wasn't a question that was easily
answered by yes or no.

MR. HARROLD said Comm ssioner Larson of Maryland would not seek
to disallowterritorial rating.

SENATOR ELTON said during the conversation they had a couple of
weeks ago, M. Harrold had indicated it was possible to | ook at
i nsurance rates by zip code in Al aska. The conversation invol ved
trying to determine whether or not <credit scoring had an
i nequitable effect between zip codes. He thought he renenbered
M. Harrold saying they had that capability.

MR. HARROLD t hought they had the capability, the data is there.
He had not been able to get the data because the conpanies and
the governnent relations people he worked with were very busy at
that time. To get that level of detail, if it was maybe a couple
of states looking into the issue, he could probably ask and get
that information

SENATOR ELTON said it mght be helpful. He said he had a feeling
that Chairman Cowdery was going to want to nove the bill so he
did not know how that would reprioritize the work of that wunit
but it m ght be hel pful.

SENATOR ELTON asked, if using credit scoring, it is likely that
car insurance or health insurance would go up for an Enron
enpl oyee who lost his or her job and mssed a utility paynent.

MR. HARRCOLD said it could be possible.

SENATOR ELTON asked if it were possible a Washington State farner
who was hanmmered by the drought last year and missed a credit
card paynent would see his health insurance prem um go up.

MR. HARRCLD said a credit score is a snap in tine. It may be
very likely that during the tine that person had a credit problem
and there was a drought an insurer would not even be |ooking at
that information. Anything is possible.

SENATOR ELTON asked if it was possible that a recently divorced

woman who has to separate her bank account from her previous
spouse’ s bank account, applied for auto insurance, her rate would

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -22- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



be higher than it would have been before the divorce.
MR. HARROLD said it is possible.

SENATOR ELTON said what bothered him was they knew all of these
things were possible. He did not disagree there was sone kind of
link between credit scoring and risk. He had a letter from
sonmeone in the insurance business in Alaska and this person
tal ked about two custoners. He explained:

« One is a woman who had no accidents or violations and had
prior insurance. She drives to work and has one vehicle

She does not own a hone but rents. Her prem um al nost
doubled to over $1000 for six nonths because of credit
scoring.

e Another is a male in his 50°s. He has a good incone, is
married and owns a honme. He owns the sanme nmake, nodel and
year of car. He has a Driving Wile Intoxicated (DW)
conviction and was involved in a DW accident five and half
years ago. The insurance agent suggested that as a new
cust oner he woul d have never gotten insurance but because of
his credit score his insurance rate is half the woman's
rate. The wonan had no cl aim

He asked M. Harrold if that sounded |i ke an unusual outcone.
MR. HARROLD said it did sound |li ke an unusual outcone.

SENATOR ELTON asked why that would be if the preponderance of the
underwiting or rating decisions were because of credit scoring.

MR. HARROLD said he did not know what the other factors were with
that person. He did not know what weight the insurer put on
credit scoring.

SENATOR ELTON asked if, before credit scoring, it would have been
nore likely than not that the nale driver would have had to pay
nore for auto insurance than the female driver.

MR, HARROLD said yes. It was also nore likely prior to credit
scoring that insurers would not insure a host of people because
they did not have the confidence to do so because they woul d not
know what their |osses mght be. That is why they are seeing
insurers insure nore people, not |ess.

SENATOR ELTON sai d perhaps. He said there are people in rura
Al aska that do not use credit the sane way he or M. Harrold do.
They don’t have an opportunity to use credit the sanme way and
they often pay by cash or a cashier’s check for major things. |If
he had a twin that had the same characteristics would it be
likely his twin would pay nore for insurance sinply because he

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -23- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



lived in a different kind of environnment.

MR. HARROLD said had heard from insurers that sone people that
don’t have a credit history in some cases mght actually have
better credit than the average person. In some cases they m ght
have average credit and there are other exanples where their |oss
experience is far nore severe if they don’t have any credit.

SENATOR ELTON asked if his brother converted to a religion that
had a basic precept, would it be likely his brother would pay
nore for hone or health insurance than he woul d pay.

MR. HARROLD said he did not know about the health insurance.

SENATOR ELTON asked if it would be nore likely than not that his
brother would pay nore for auto insurance than hinself even
t hough they had a simlar driving record.

MR. HARROLD said it would depend on the conpany and the history.

SENATOR ELTON said he did not understand that answer. It would
be hel pful if M. Harrold would give them a fornmula on how they
use credit scoring and how they get to the credit scoring.

CHAl RVAN COWDERY said they talked about religion. There are
peopl e who do not believe in credit for religious reasons. They
don’t have a credit rating. He quoted a statenent nmade by M.
Harrold fromthe Decenber 26, 2001 issue of the Seattle Tines:

We're not penalizing anybody but they - that’'s the
peopl e without credit history - wont’ get a reward for
havi ng good credit.

He asked M. Harrold if he said that.
MR. HARROLD said those were his words.

SENATOR WARD said due to no fault of their own there are a | ot of
people in the tinber industry no longer able to nake a living
because of actions by governnment. On top of that, especially in
his district, some of those very sane people were involved in the
commercial fishing industry and they are no | onger able to nmake a
living. They would now have a higher rate because they were
behind in paynents on their credit cards and other things. He
asked if that was correct.

MR. HARROLD said it is very possible. In all the exanples, it is
possible they wll pay nore and if «credit scoring is as
predictive as insurers say, the reason they wll pay nore is
because they are going to have higher losses. The flip side of
the question could just as easily be should the person that is

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 24- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



not going to have the |oss pay nore insurance to cover the |oss
those people are going to have. That is the equation they are
dealing with, that is really what they are doing.

SENATOR ELTON said he would rather subsidize a good driver with
no claimhistory who m ght not have a good credit score, based on
a formula that nobody is willing to share with anybody, than
subsidize a fellow that has a record of DW accidents. He found
it a little bit off-putting to suggest there is a subsidy that
goes one way but doesn’'t go the other way.

CHAl RMAN CONDERY asked to his knowl edge if there was any effort
when they use credit reports or scoring to determne if the
reports are in fact accurate. M. Harrold had stated earlier that
driving records are not accurate.

MR. HARROLD said they do not take each individual record and | ook
at them because what conmes to an insurer has gone through a
credit bureau that had the fornmula on file. The record runs
through that nodel and what cones to an insurer is the score.
I nsurers are not |ooking at the personal data of any insured. If
there is an adverse action taken, if sonebody has a higher rate
or they are cancelled or non-renewed, then under the Fair Credit
Reporting Act that individual has the right to contact the credit
bureau and get their credit report for free. At that point if the
i ndividual canme back to the insurer they could try to correct
that information. Certainly that is sonmething the industry is
willing to do. The industry is nore than wlling to have nore
disclosure to give people an opportunity to find out if the
information is correct and to then go back and re-rate or re-
underwite the policy to give them the characteristics that are
nost inportant in inpacting their credit score. There are a | ot
of things the insurance industry is willing to do to help people
better understand the process. That exanple is not sonething they
can do with each report that comes through.

MR. DAVI D MCCARTER, Fairbanks resident, explained he had a couple
of tickets on his record but no accidents. He worked hard over
three years to nmake sure he didn't get any nore tickets. He used
his turn signal and stopped at yellow |lights because he thought
he was going to reap the rewards. He and his wi fe purchased new
vehi cl es and thought their prem uns would conme dowmn. They have a
2001 diesel Ford pick-up and a 2001 Buick Regal. Their prem um
was $2430 for the two vehicles. Three days before their insurance
expired he went to alnobst every insurance conpany in town. He
di scovered if he cancelled with his current conpany and noved to
anot her, the very cheapest insurance rate available would have
been $4890 for the two vehicles.

MR. MCCARTER said they have pretty good credit. They own two
houses and one is a rental. In 2001 while buying their house,

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -25- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



t hey discovered sone inaccuracies on their credit report. They
were able to clear that up with the bank but have been fighting
with an attorney to get it off their record and it was not an
easy thing to do. He found, had he changed insurers, his
i nsurance policy would have nore than doubl ed because of credit
scoring. lnsurance conpanies were saying they were pronoting good
driving. He thought the problem was there is no notivation to
drive decently. He really has good credit but was told he had to
submt it to an underwiter who would look at it but there were
no guarantees. State Farm and Allstate would not even wite hima
policy. CGeico would wite a policy but the price was really
outrageous. He thought it was an wunfair and discrimnatory
practi ce.

M5. TARA DRENNON, Fairbanks resident, explained she was a victim
of identification (ID) theft. They found out about the theft |ast
year and notified her insurance conpany when she renewed their
auto policy. The insurer was not sure he could renew her auto
i nsurance. They had I|ife insurance, honeowner insurance and
renter insurance through that conpany for four years and were
told that could work for her. Her credit check cane back bad.
The only reason they stayed with that conpany was because of the
three other policies. They now pay an increased rate because of
her ID theft on her credit report. ID theft is becomng one of
t he nunber one crimnal offenses. She does not see how insurers
can single people out by their credit report not know ng these
people had an ID theft. There are individuals that don’t know an
| D theft occurred.

MR. STEVE CONN, Al aska Public Interest Research G oup (AkPIRG,
said he had attended neetings on credit scoring with national and
| ocal consuner groups. He was glad they were addressing it head
on in Al aska.

The principle reason why nmany questions raised by the
Senators coul d not be answered by the representative of
the insurance industry and, in fact, can’'t be answered
by any insurance agent when these crazy rate hi kes cone

up i s because they are based on conputer nodels - not
just the credit report but conputer nobdels that the
conpanies will not share. In other words, the result in

these little black boxes cannot be verified and cannot
be replicated. And we’'re just supposed to believe that
you feed in information into this little black machine
and on the other end cones an answer that even your
| ocal agent who’s known you all his life or her life
cannot change.

Bob Hunter, who is the Director of I|nsurance for the

Consuner Federation, said it’s like a black box and he
says they haven't verified that mnorities, people with

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 26- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



disabilities and the poor aren’t discrimnated against

by this system | nmean what you're left with wondering
Senator, is whether or not this new proposal that is
now sweepi ng the country is going to be used as a cover
for illegal discrimnation that has al ready taken place
or wll be used as a cover for prospective
discrimnation that m ght take place. And | think many
of the Senators reached that in their — with their
i nformation.

Personal information, real life information about a
person is better than laying them up against a
statistical nodel. This very clearly will lead to a

kind of discrimnation that works directly against
Al aska public policy not only statutorily.

But we have easily 14,000 licensed drivers that don’'t
have insurance. If we nove, if we allow this to happen
here, to what degree are we going to discourage them
from getting insurance and have to carry uninsured on
our own.

MR. CONN nai ntained the only correlation he sawis on the part of
the insurance conpani es between their greed and their ingenuity.
| nsurance conpanies know they are not getting the investnents
they used to in the stock market so they are trying to take it
out of the custoners with a pig in a poke that can’t be verified.

M5. SUZANNE KELLEY, owner Alaska Tab & Bind Printing Conpany,
said when she heard about this issue she talked to about 50
peopl e who were unaware their rates were based on a credit score.
Everyone she had tal ked with was shocked.

She found out when she got an annual rate increase of about $600,
which was well over a 40% increase. She called the insurance
conpany and asked what the rate increase was about. Progressive
told her the State of Alaska required a credit check every 36
nonths. They told her it was in statute. She asked themfor the
| aw and they could not cite it for her.

She called other insurance conpanies and received quotes and all
were based on credit scoring. Premuns were not based on her
driving ability. She had not been in an accident or nade a claim
on her policy.

MS. KELLEY said her honmeowner insurance doubled so she changed
conpani es. She said the only thing that had changed was she had
purchased a honme and expanded her busi ness. She uses her own |ine
of credit and is self-enployed and pays her bills on tine.

MS. KELLEY said this is discrimnation. There are people that are

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -27- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



poor and young who are not going to pay $3000 per year for
i nsurance just because they don’t have credit while working at
Wal -Mart. “This is discrimnation. | can pay, they can't.”

She checked rates everywhere and tal ked to every agent she had
received a quote fromand the agents had an issue with this. The
agents are working for conmpanies they are not in agreenment with
but have no choice because those are the laws and they do not
even understand the | aws.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY pointed out the agents are agents of insurance
conpanies and do not set the rates. They are working on a
commi ssi on.

MS. KELLEY said the agents are not aware of the rates or how t hey
are set. The agents are not in agreenent with credit scoring and
have seen many areas where it appears to be discrimnatory. They
will admt that.

V5. DEE HUBBARD, Sterling resident, was in support of SB 320
She found out about credit scoring from a friend two years
earlier and began exploring it. She found no one who could tel
her whether credit scoring was being used or not. Last year she
tal ked to a gentleman at the National Consunmer |nsurance Hotli ne.
He told her in his 40 years of working in the insurance conpany
busi ness he had never heard of anyone using credit scoring.

She was surprised the l|legislature had three bills relating to
credit scoring and hoped one of the bills would pass. She said SB
1408, which is being considered in Idaho, goes a little bit
further than SB 320. It will not allow an insurer to charge a
hi gher premium and in addition the insurer cannot cancel, non-
renew or decline to issue a property or casualty policy or
coverage based primarily on an individual’'s credit rating or
credit history. Wth SB 1408, a person cannot be denied
i nsurance, be told their policy will not be renewed or have their
i nsurance cancelled strictly because of credit rating or credit
scoring. She thought that mght be something the Transportation
Conmittee would consider as an amendnent that would nake it
stronger. She woul d back anything that would nake it stronger.

MS. HUBBARD said as a consuner she is tired of being the one that
has to prove she has done nothing wong. Wen Wlls Fargo bought
her bank, four checks bounced due to bank error and it took seven
hours to get it squared away. She said people who think it is
easy to get a credit report changed should try it one tinme and
t hey woul d change their tune.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY said they had a copy of the lIdaho |egislation
He told her the bill would be heard in other commttees.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 28- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



SENATOR ELTON said in one way Chairman Cowdery’s bill is stronger
than the Idaho bill. The Idaho bill provides that insurers cannot
charge a higher premium or cancel a policy or coverage based
primarily upon credit scoring. They define base primarily as
meani ng that the weight given by the insurer to an individual’s
credit rating or credit history exceeds the other weight given by
the insurer. The Idaho bill would allow credit scoring as |ong as
it doesn’'t count for nore than 49% of the decision making
process.

M5. HUBBARD said Senator Elton was right. She did not necessarily
like the wording that was used in the Idaho bill but she I|iked
the thrust of not allowing a cancellation or a non-renewal or
soneone bei ng declined insurance.

M5. SARAH MCNAI R- GROVE, Property/Casualty Actuary, D vision of
| nsurance, said the Alaska D vision of Insurance agrees wth
Chai rman Cowdery that additional regulation in the area of credit
scoring by insurance conpanies is appropriate. However, how far
to go, including whether it should be a total prohibition they
believe is a policy call but they did support the efforts in the
area. She told nmenbers:

The Division’s responsibility is to review auto
insurance rates and to approve them if they neet the

statutory requirenents. And t hose statutory
requirenents are the rates not be excessive, they not
be inadequate and that they not be unfairly

di scrimnatory. As has already been nentioned here, one
of the first approvals of the use of credit information
inarate filing occurred approximately four and a half
- five years ago with Progressive’'s filing. W spent
over a year |ooking at that filing, gat heri ng
information, |ooking at the statistical support for its
use, asked many of the sanme questions that have been
asked here and felt that by the tine that was over
t hey had provided the information necessary to neet the
statutory requirenents and so we approved the filing.

Since then we have approximately seven insurance
conpani es who have specific filings approved to use
credit information in the rating process. Si nce
Decenber of 2000, we have al so received another el even
filings requesting to use credit information in the
rating process. Those have been significantly
questioned. Four, actually six of those filings were
wi t hdrawn or the insurer renoved the credit information
because they could not provide the information that we
needed. Two of the filings were approved and those are
the USAA filings that were also just recently nentioned
here. The other filings are still either under review

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -29- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



or were disapproved because we could not get the
supporting information that we needed. W have also
four homeowner filings but since we weren't dealing
with those | won’'t nention those.

CHAI RMAN CONDERY said this bill covers all insurance.

M5. MCNAI R- GROVE sai d they have four homeowner filings. Three of
those renoved the credit information because they could not get
the credit information needed.

An insurer may also wuse credit scoring in the
underwriting process and the division does not have
prior approval over the underwiting process so we
don't see that criteria before insurers use it. But
other insurers besides these that have rate filings |
believe are using it.

As the use of credit scoring has increased in Al aska,
the division has continued to receive questions,
inquiries and conplaints from consuners regarding the
use of credit information simlar to the ones that we
have just heard. And it has been very difficult for us
to get good answers from the insurance conpanies that
consuners can understand as to why credit information
is an appropriate rating tool and how it has affected
their rates.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY asked if there was effort by the Division of
Insurance to verify the accuracy of the credit references
i nsurers use.

M5. MCNAI R- GROVE said they do not. One of the questions they have
asked insurers that use credit scoring is what opportunities they
provi de consuners to get information corrected. Mst of them
responded that they follow the Fair Credit Reporting Act.

CHAIRVAN COANDERY said on his own credit report there was
sonet hing that was absolutely fal se. He was conpl etely unaware of
it until he applied for a loan. The | oan was approved but he did
not accept it because he was not happy about the false
information. A person could get a traffic ticket driving another
person’s car. The owner is unaware of it and it goes to a
col l ection agency and enters the system

SENATOR ELTON said they heard testinony that a consuner was told
state law or state regulations require that Progressive do a
credit score periodically. He asked if there is any law or
regul ation that requires an insured s carrier to do that.

M5. MCNAI R-GROVE said there is no law or regulation. She believed

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 30- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



the testifier was referring to an insurance conpany’s rating
plan. When an insurance conpany files with the Division of
| nsurance and details how they are going to use the rating plan
and list the criteria they are going to use to determne the
appropriate rate, they nust follow that plan. Progressive has
said how they are going to use credit information and people with
a certain credit score get placed in a certain tier. So in that
sense they are followng their approved rating plan but there is
no requirenment that they use credit information.

SENATOR ELTON said it woul d probably be an insurer’s choice to do
t hat because that would give them the opportunity to raise rates
if in fact there has been a change in credit history.

He asked if the Division of Insurance reviews the credit scoring
formul as used by insurance carriers in the State of Al aska.

M5. MCNAIR-GROVE said they had tried to do that. That was the
reason why sone of the recent filings were w thdrawn because they
could not get that information. Wien they reviewed Progressive’s
filing Progressive did their own in-house nodel and there was not
a third party although they had the sanme confidentiality
concerns. The division required themto list all of the pieces of
information they used off of the credit report. They did not
require them to give the division the specific weighting, for
exanpl e where this piece of information gets two percent and this
pi ece of information gets mnus five percent. The division did
not require that.

SENATOR ELTON sai d one of the reasons he |liked SB 320 was because
the Division of Insurance feels they may have sone authority over
the setting of rates because of statutory |anguage that says
unfairly discrimnatory. But the division feels they have no
authority over the underwiting conponent when it cones to credit
scoring. He asked if that was true.

M5. MCONAI R-CGROVE explained she would not say they had no
authority. They did not have prior approval authority and they
would have to look at the underwiting process through their
Unfair Trade Practices Law and it would be a market conduct type
exam

SENATOR TAYLOR thought the Division of Insurance was to protect
the public from outrageous gougi ng being done by the industry.
To do that they would go through and review clainms and the anount
paid out in the form of clains, defense of clainms and cost of
handling clains would be a nunber and that would be how much
noney they took in from premuns. Then there would be how nmuch
noney they paid out in clains. There would also be how much
profit they made off of investing in a bull market |ike the | ast
ten years. The Division of Insurance would | ook at that and woul d

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -31- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



say that is a reasonable new rate the insurance conpanies are
applying for or it is not a reasonable rate. Apparently there is
sonething else figured in there, which is sone |evel of profit

mar gi
nmake.

n the division believes the insurance conpanies have to

He said they went through all that during the tort reform
novenment when he found out his personal insurance as an attorney
on mal practice had gone up about three or four thousand percent.
There had been no increase in clains in a five-year period. H's
i nsurance comm ssioners had approved all those increases. At that
point he had lost faith in how nmuch protection he was getting.

On this issue of credit as a factor in the process |I'm
concerned that we seenmed to have drifted a |ong ways
away from evaluating an appropriate |evel of premum
based on clainms. And now we seem to determ ne that an
appropriate level of premum is based on a person’s
sex, their gender, based on their age, based on their
marital status and now based on their credit report.
None of which have anything to do with driving a car
but have correlations statistically that may show t hat
they’re a greater risk or a smaller risk. Is that what
we're turning into nowis we're going to go to a system
where you' Il be pigeon holed and the anmount you have to
pay for insurance will depend upon what your credit is,
how old you are, whether or not your narried and
what ever other things that they may want. Is that the
ki nd of system we’re noving into now?

V5. MCNAI R- GROVE r esponded:

| would say that we do |look at exactly the kinds of
things that you look at. And you heard discussion of
|l oss ratios earlier and that is a relationship of how
much you take in in premum conpared to how nuch you
pay out in losses. So we do |ook at those. W do not
ignore those and |ook strictly at these nodels and
various other things. That is part of the process and
we try to be sure that that those match as closely as
possi bl e.

In terms of the other factors, we have been using them
and they have - are what traditionally acceptable,
should we say that, the gender and the age and sex
t hose have been used for a long tinme. The credit report
is a newone that’s just added to the pot.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked the foll owi ng questions.

When you said you were unable to get information about

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -32- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



credit reports and how they conpile them whether they
verified it was good information or not and so on, how
do you know as a — as a insurance conmmi ssioner in this
state, how do you know that they are not utilizing any
ot her aspect in determning whether or not to either
sell a policy or not to sell one or what rate or what
pi geon hole to put soneone in? How do |I know that the
i nsurance industry isn't racially profiling. How did I
know that they re not using religion? How do I know
they’re not using sexual preference as a guide? How
woul d | be assured of that?

M5. MCNAIR-GROVE said they review the filings in which the
i nsurance conpany tells themthe criteria they are going to use.
The insurance conpany nust then follow the filing as filed with
the division. As the division approves the filing if there are
guestions or consuner conplaints saying the conpany is not doing
the right thing then the division has a market conduct process.
They actually go out and review what the conpanies are doing and
see if they are doing what was approved for themto do.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if they sent sonebody out that actually
pretended they were a buyer and went to an agent and sat down
with themor do they just go out and audit.

M5. MCNAI R- GROVE sai d probably nore of an audit process. W audit
their claimfiles and | ook at various pieces of information.

SENATOR TAYLOR said he was very concerned about identity theft.
The legislature may need to address that if it is a factor and
conponent. He said he passed a bill that nmade it a nore serious
offense. He had not realized how that information mght be
m sused and abused by people within the insurance industry. He
wanted to talk with Ms. MNair-G ove about that at another tine.

SENATOR TAYLOR said each of his children decided to live with
soneone for a couple of years before they were married. During
the period of tinme when they were living with sonmeone they woul d
have been classed as single and paid a higher rate. He asked if
the Division of Insurance approved that.

M5. MCNAI R-GROVE said it was possi ble. Wiether they paid a higher
rate could depend wupon the definition of wmarital in their
conpany’s filing. If a conpany would choose to say a |long
rel ationship would fall under the marital category and provide a
statistic that showed they woul d have the sanme characteristics as
soneone who is married the Division of Insurance could approve
that. It would be the conpany’ s choice as to whether or not they
woul d want to do that.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if those people who choose not to marry but

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 33- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



live together for a lengthy period of time are paying a single
rate and the Division of Insurance approved that as a factor the
i nsurance conpany coul d use.

M5. MCNAI R- GROVE answer ed yes.

SENATE TAYLOR said the division does not ask the insurance
conpany to do these things. They wait for the conpanies to cone
in and vol unt eer.

M5. MCNAIR-GROVE said it was the conpanies’ responsibility to
make rate filings and set the rating plan.

SENATOR ELTON said it is inportant to note that a credit report
is different than a credit score. It is relatively easy for a
consuner to have access to their «credit report and nake
corrections but they don’t know how those corrections affect a
credit score. The credit score is a proprietary tool used by the
i nsurance conpani es and they don’t tell the Division of |Insurance
what that fornula is. He asked if that was correct.

M5. MCNAI R- GROVE response was i naudi bl e.

M5. ELI ZABETH MOCERI, Regional Counsel, Allstate |nsurance
Company, testified in opposition to SB 320. She said she was
there to talk about the benefits of credit scoring and why
Al'l state I nsurance Conpany uses credit scoring. She said they had
heard a | ot of negatives.

M5. MOCERI said their goal is to use credit scoring in rating in
Al aska. Wth credit scoring, Allstate will provide |ower prices,
| ower rates and accept nore policyholders into their market.
They currently use credit scoring in underwiting in Al aska.
Credit information is predictive of loss history and it’'s very
accurate. They saw a predictive correlation between credit
scoring information and future | oss.

TAPE @2-12, SIDE A

M5. MOCERI said Allstate was one of the conpanies that wthdrew
their filing as Ms. McNair-Gove had indicated. They w t hdrew not
because they did not want to share their algorithns with the
Division of Insurance but because they could not guarantee its
confidentiality. They are still working with the D vision of
I nsurance and would like to have sone requirenent that their
algorithns would be confidential so the Division of |Insurance
could reviewit.

In our states that we do use credit scoring in rating

our policy prices are, our rates, are very conpetitive.
In the states of Washington and Idaho and Oregon our

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 34- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



agents are — have increased their productivity, their
witing nore insurance policy and offering very
conpetitive rates. And, for exanple, you nentioned
| daho. We recently, an Allstate agent testified in
support of credit scoring at the Idaho Senate hearing
and she gave exanples, she’'s marketing to Lithuanian

and Russian and Hispanic immgrants. This group of
policyholders has credit and are receiving — receiving
our best rates. And she feels that she’s being very

conpetitive with State Farm and Progressive and the
ot her carriers.

M5. MOCERI said two Allstate agents testified in Washington State
in support of credit scoring. They gave exanples where using
credit scoring allowed janitors and sonme nedical care
professionals to receive the best rate while other nedical
prof essionals did not receive their nost favorable tier. She said
those were exanples that you can’'t tell a book by its cover
There had been evidence where sone people were being
di sadvantaged by credit scoring but wth Allstate 70% of
policyhol ders benefit by credit scoring. Allstate gave a very
good discount with credit scoring and was able to give that
di scount because of the confidence they have. Not allow ng credit
scoring would deprive the majority of policyholders of having
this di scount.

CHAI RVAN COADERY asked if in her opinion the ngjority of people,
if they understood credit scoring, would approve of it.

M5. MOCERI said she did. She thought the industry had done a
terrible job explaining the use of credit scoring. It is a very
enotional issue and the assunption is that it is negative. Their
scoring nodel |ooks at positives and negatives but it is a
hol i stic approach.

She said they were not going to show the commttee the algorithm
because it is proprietary and nmakes them nore conpetitive. She
said it was not that she didn’'t want Chairman Cowdery to see it,
she did not want State Farm and Progressive to see it because she
is able to offer a |lower rate because of its predictive value. It
is nore predictive than tickets.

M5. MOCERI said she wanted to tal k about Hawaii. She said Hawai i
is a great place to visit but it is a terrible place to emulate
on | egislation. The insurance conm ssioner asked all the carriers
to voluntarily cease using credit in underwiting and they did.
Al'l state agents’ production is down 12% because they had to
tighten other underwriting guidelines. If sonmeone has a ticket in
Hawaii they cannot get insurance with Allstate for three years.
That is what would happen in Al aska. Allstate would have to turn
nore people away and they want to bring in nore people.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 35- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



SENATOR WARD said Hawaii doesn’'t allow weighing rates by bad
credit so Allstate’s rates have gone up. He asked if that was
correct.

M5. MOCERI said their rates have not gone up but they are turning
people away. It is an availability issue.

SENATOR WARD said M. Harrold had said because of an initiative
they can no longer wuse credit in California. He asked if
Al l state’s rates had gone up in California since that proposition
passed.

M5. MOCERI believed they were filing for rate increases in
California.

SENATOR WARD asked if it had gone up.

M5. MOCERI said Allstate Insurance Conpany had filed for rate
i ncreases in California.

SENATOR WARD asked if that was because of not being able to have
credit weighed into rates.

M5. MOCERI said she could not speak to California. She said she
was not famliar with the laws. She knew California was a very
unique and conplicated situation. Because each state has
different guidelines and different requirenments and there are
56,000 insurance reqgqulations, it is very difficult to conpare
st at es.

SENATOR WARD asked what percentage of people in Hawaii applying
for insurance are being denied since they did away with credit
scori ng.

M5. MOXCERI said it was too early to tell. She thought the
carriers would have to tighten down the underwiting guidelines.
Credit is a very valid and predictive tool. Wen they are
deprived from using that tool they have to use other |ess
reliable tools. Hawaii is a very unique state and has a unique
take all conmers history. Several years ago Hawaii had tort

reform She said she only remarked on Hawaii because the Senator
tal ked about it. Hawaii had a mandatory roll back of rates. It
was not voluntary by the carriers it was required by |aw She
said there were other reasons why rates went down.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY reiterated there were about 25 other states
currently considering banning the use of credit scoring. In
Hawaii they have had about 15 years of this practice and the
prem uns are currently sone of the lowest rates in the states.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 36- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



Hawai i not only banned credit they banned al nbst everything el se
to use in rating. He asked if that was correct.

M5. MOCERI said they were also considering a |aw that would not
allow certain traffic tickets to be reported to insurance
conpani es.

SENATOR ELTON said he could understand the witness's aversion to
tal ki ng about Hawaii. He asked if Allstate had | ost any judgnents
in Hawaii in the last two years. He asked if they had lost a
j udgnment where a court affirmed and ordered themto cease using a
person’s length of driving experience in prem um cal cul ations.

M5. MOCERI said they do not comment on pending litigation. There
is pending litigation regarding the use of credit in underwiting
in the State of Hawaili .

SENATOR ELTON said the informati on he had was that they had | ost.
A judge had rul ed against Allstate.

M5. MOCERI said there was a pending case with the Hawaii Suprene
Court.

SENATOR ELTON asked if a judge had also ruled that Allstate had
violated Hawaii’s provision that prohibits the use of credit
rating in setting prem uns.

M5. MOCERI said there was a pending case in the Hawaii Suprene
Court of Allstate vs. Metcalfe. They do have pending litigation.

SENATOR ELTON said he could understand her aversion of talking
about Hawaii because it seened her conpany mght have a few
probl ens there.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY said in defense of Allstate he had been wth
All state for 40 years or nore. He has a good agent, is satisfied
wi th himand receives good rates.

He said his daughter is 47 years old and in the last ten years
she had driven 187,000 mles in her pickup truck. She recently
got insurance through Progressive and he believed her prem um was
set at $2400 or $2700. He thought that was ridiculous so she
cancelled her policy and he asked his agent to put her on his
policy, which cost approxi mately $700.

M5. MOCERI said the distinction there is again using credit in
the underwiting side and the rating side. Allstate would like to
resubmt their filing wwth the state if their algorithm would be
confidential. Under that scenario they have a rate for everyone.
Allstate has a rate for people who don’t have a credit history.
In their algorithm people with bankruptcies in their past record

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -37- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



still are eligible for some of their best rates. Seventy percent
of people are getting a credit discount. Wen they ban credit
they are banning the ability to give that discount to those
peopl e. Those are people that do not cause losses. Credit is
predictive of |osses. The people who benefit frombanning it are
t he people who cause the majority of the | osses.

CHAl RMAN CONDERY said his daughter is a single parent and owns a
home worth $180,000 to $200,000. She doesn’'t owe noney on her
hone and is current on her credit cards and her insurance rate
was a total shock. He couldn’'t wunderstand the differential
between that rate and adding her to his policy.

SENATOR TAYLOR said Chairnman Cowdery’s daughter had sone credit
problens and it was the credit problens that Progressive was
using to figure out her rate. That is why her policy rate was
al nost $2000 higher. He said that was the concern he had. He
st at ed:

| love the positive approach you know. It’'s you really
want to do this because if we get to credit rate people
we’ || gouge the heck out of the guy with the bad credit
rating but we're going then to be able to give 70% of
the people a discount off of that. Because on the other
side of your coin you just said 70% The other 30% are
payi ng through the nose aren’t they?

M5. MOCERI said the 30% that are paying through the nose as
Senator Taylor coined it are the people who are causing the
| osses.

SENATOR TAYLOR said she had no evidence of causation. He said she
had a whole lot of evidence and a lot of conmputer runs that
statistically show there is a correlation. He said she didn't
have anyt hi ng on causati on.

M5. MOCERI said in states where they use credit scoring they
know by tiers who causes |osses. “The people with the |east
favorable, in our l|least favorable tier do cause in honeowner’s
rates 100% of the | osses are caused by the | east favorable tier.”
They see a very strong correlation and the information they
received was information based on their own studies. She thought
the people who benefit if they ban credit scoring are people who
cause the clainms. They are trying to predict for the future.
They are trying to look at how they can be conpetitive. The
insurance nmarket is a very conpetitive environnment. Allstate
wants to provide the nost conpetitive price.

SENATOR TAYLOR said the only way they can pass on any savings to

anyone is if they get nore noney from the other people. He said
her nunbers are 70%430% M. Harrold' s nunbers were around 50%

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 38- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



getting a benefit of $180 by using this system He thought M.
Harrold had agreed that 9% of the people would see a $900
increase in their premum all based on the correlation between
credit rating, not the causation, the correlation. He said M.
Moceri wanted to keep using those terns interchangeably and they
certainly are not interchangeable either through statistics or
through the rating schedul es and systens they are working under.

SENATOR TAYLOR was renmi nded of an old establishnent in Anchorage
and it operated on the basis: “W cheat the other guy and pass
the savings on to you.” He thought that was happening. They are
going to define who the higher risk is through this obtuse thing
called credit rating and then they are going to make certain that
group wll pay enough noney so Allstate can becone “nore
conpetitive in the market and be excited about having 12% nore
sal es.” They can charge |l ess than the other conpany that probably
isn’t invading sonebody’s privacy to get their credit rating but
is charging rates based upon other factors. He said he didn’'t
think the law went far enough and suggested they anmend it and
elimnate age, gender, marital status and length of driving
experience just like Hawaii did and nmaybe they will have as | ow
of prem uns as Hawaii .

SENATOR ELTON said he should have checked to see who his auto
i nsurer was before the hearing. He was pl eased to hear Ms. Moceri
believed if allowed to use credit scoring Allstate anticipated
the net effect would be directly opposite the experience of
Progressive where rates went up 19% Allstate woul d expect rates
to drop bel ow what they are chargi ng now.

M5. MOCERI said under their rating plan they are able to offer
very conpetitive rates because they are able to predict how that
group will performin the future. Because of their confidence in
that prediction, they are able to offer a very conpetitive rate.

SENATOR ELTON said he understood the conpetitive nature of their
formulas. He asked if it was true that a lot of insurance
conpanies just buy a fornmula from Fair, |saac Conpany and there
is no conpetitive advantage because they are using the sane
f or mul a.

M5. MOCERI said sone conpanies do use a conpany like Fair, |saac
Conmpany to do their own nodels and they run different nodels for
different conpanies. Allstate has its own nodel and is big enough
to do studies and research. They spent a lot of tinme |ooking at
this issue because their conpetitors were doing it. If their
conpetitors were doing it and it wasn't predictive then they
would not wuse it. Allstate found from their studies it 1is
predicti ve.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY asked who paid for their studies.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 39- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



M5. MOCERI said they have a planning and research center.

CHAl RMAN CONDERY said the outcome is not influenced by who paid
for the studies.

M5. MOCERI said they had a billion dollars in premuns from
policyholders in the United States. They did a blind study and
conpared credit information against |oss history. They saw a
strong correlation.

| nsurance | ooks at groups and how they performas a group. It is
fair discrimnation. Wwen they look at groups there is
correlation. There always will be exceptions to the group just
li ke an exception to a ticket. Not all 16 year old boys are bad
drivers. They would think a 16 year old m ght be a good driver
because they are young, have good eyesight and have better
reflexes but they are worse drivers. They offer good student
di scounts and soneone could argue that mght be discrimnatory
but it is sonething they offer.

SENATOR ELTON noved CSSB 320 (TRA) from commttee with attached
fiscal note and individual recomendations. There being no
obj ection, the notion carried.

#

CHAI RVAN COADERY explained the other part of this issue that
i nvolved collision insurance was introduced as SB 348 and would
be heard the following week. He adjourned the neeting at 3:33
p. m

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -40- FEBRUARY 28, 2002



